
INTERVIEWEES: EUGENE AND HELEN WILLIAMS (Tape 1 of 2) 

MICHAEL L. GILLETTE INTERVIEWER: 

PLACE: The Williams IS horne in Washington, D. C. 

October 27, 1974 

MG: 

HW: 

MG: 

HW: 

Let's start with the occasion when you first met Lyndon Johnson, 

if you can rernember how you met him and whe re it was. 

When we first met Senator Johnson, it was at their apartment there 

in Austin out on Dillman Street. We applied there for a job that 

they had advertised for, for a couple that would travel. Of course, 

we thou,ght that this sounded interesting and that we would apply. 

So we did. After two weeks' trial, we got the job. Wernet Senator 

Johnson later, who was a very tall, kind of heavy n~an and had a strong 

face, which seen~ed to have been his character for the rest of the time 

that we knew hi'm. Of course, there were times when we would have 

to go to Washington. He was always very energetic, wanting his 

family around him, and entertaining everyone. I never have been 

able to understand how one person had so much energy. He loved 

his family so much. Most of the time, though, what was most 

impressive about him was when, in a crisis, he never fell apart. He 

could just always pick up the pieces and carryon. 

Can you recall an exarnple where he was under a lot of pressure 

and yet just [carried on]? 

I remernber one tirne when we had this flood at: the ranch. He had 
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a friend visiting b,im there with a heli.copter. There were people 

around there that didn't know if they were going to be drowned. 

But he awakened everyone in the middle of the night, he got this 

helicopte r, and he res -:ued all thes e people, brought the:m to the 

ral1.ch, aYJ.d there we were serving breakfast. It just turned out to 

be a gay affair in the lnidst of something very dcatructive. It was 

things like this that you could admire him for. 

Then there were Limes 'Nhen he would be caITlpaigning and 

with very little rest:, You would think that he had a. few minutes 

to rest, and then one of the aides would co'me in and say, "This 

group is out to see you o II He would have to be a';;yakened, but he 

could always corne out sm.iling and greet these people. 

Do you remern.ber, when you met him the first time, did he give you 

any speci.al instructions or guidelines or watchwords that you retnember? 

Yes. Gene, you can r cmelnber that. Do you remember when he told 

you a'-:)out minding your own business? 

I will say this. The way we met hixn is they wanted this help 

and we went out to interview. They had checked our 

references. I think they hadtnaybe twelve or thirteen couples, or 

we were thirteen. He said to me, "You didn't finish college, you 

didn't do this, but with y~)llr references, we're going b.) hir,:: jOu. II 

Just like tha.t. But then g;.)i.ng 01'1 d·YNn. he said, IIIf you want to be 

arnart, you do your work al1,d keep your:nouth closed. II That means 
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if you don't know, then you can learn by noc talking. You listen 

to other people, 3.nd you can learn quite a bit, which kind of wor:-ced 

out, I guess. 

MG: Now did you work with him primari.ly in Austin, 0 r did you go to 

Washington with then"l. 

EW: 

HW: 

We worked with theITl in Austin and here, too. 

We cOlnmuted from Austin with thel'n, and then trOlveled aroun:i with 

thetn on carnpaign trips and various places that they went. One other 

time that I recall was when we were at the ranch, we had a very, very 

hard ti.me getting dornestic help. So I was always that type of per30n, 

too, after watching him. These people kind of generated on you. You 

just wanted to be there and be with them and do whatever [you could]. 

They undertook so many problems, of other people, the country, and 

the state of Texas then, because he was senator, and you just wanted 

to do whatever you could to make life a little easier for them. We were 

unable to get domestic help, so we just kind of picked up and did the 

best we could to see that everything went along as smoothly as 

possible. And of course, he watched all of this. I carne in that 

Octobe r l, and surp r:.singly tome, with the staff around, he had got 

up a surpri_se birthday party for me. They sang Happy Bir:hday to 

me and [ther8 were] all the gifts. This was when he gave rne a record 

pla.yer. He had'l.:"lticipatedmy needs. I had mentioned to Gene, "I'm 

going to get me a record p13,yer, 11 because I felt as if I wanted some music. 
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I asked Gene, "Did you tell Senator Johnson that I wanted a recori 

player?" Gene said, "No." So I asked him [Senator Johnson] later, 

"How did you know that I wanted a record player?" He said, "Well, 

I just thought that you were the type of person that loved lnusic, and 

you needed some music. 11 You know it was just kind of surprising 

how he could a::'lhcipate your needs. 

That's a good story. Was there sOlnething that you could do 

generally to help him out when he was under a lot of pressure? 

He was a very warm person. I think he could tell jus t by the 

expression on your face that you were in sympathy with him. Maybe 

if you just handed him a hot cup of Sanka, or just handed him. something, 

or maybe smiled. He knew his friends. You knew that it was very 

little that you could [do]. 

(Interruption) 

He liked hot coffee, then? 

Well, Sanka really at that time. 

What were his favorite foods? 

He liked lllostly cream.y dishes. He lov3d lamb hash and tapioca. 

He had very strong feelings about the way he wanted foods prepared. 

Did he ever cook hims elf? 

He neve r cooked, but I'll tell you, .he could really tell you how to cook 

and how ev~rything should taste. 

Is that right? 
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That I S right. He really could. Oh, he knew about everything; 

there was nothing that he didn't know about, the littlest odd 

things that he lcnew about. 

Can you recall when SOlneone else was cooking so.mething and 

he was showing them how to do it or telling the:m how to do it? 

(Laughing) I can remember one time that the cook wasn't there at 

Christmas so I was cooking the Christmas dinner. Of course, I 

didn't exactly prepare the gravy properly, so he told .me exactly 

what should have been done, and I knew where I had made the mistake. 

Did he like desserts? 

Yes, he loved desserts. 

What was his fav:Jrite? 

I really do believe that tapioca was Dne of his favorites. and during 

the sea.s·Jn he loved fresh peach ice cream. 

Do you think he was considera,bly more relaxed at the ranch than he 

was in 'Washington? Did his life style change, 'J r was he able to 

cO'me back to the ranch and relax? 

Oh, yes" Well, to Ine he could relax either LJlace, but I think he 

felt freer at the ranch. In'1Nashington, let ' s face it, you have your 

ties and things Eke that, and at the ranch he was just like he is in 

that picture ther~. That's the way I really reinelnber him at the 

ranch, in his ranch clothes, and that ITleans a lot, out over the 

fields and with the family and all. Everybody was just kind of carefree. 
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Who did he enjoy being 'Nith at the r.itlch? Who do you think 

provided hiITl with the be8t co.mpany? 

His family and his close friends arou.nd, like A. W. Moursund 

and Melvin Winters, and he love'] the co.mpany of, who is now, I 

think, Judge Thornberry but was then Congressman Thornberry. 

Judge Homer Thornberry. 

Yes, friends like that. 

What would they do? Would they play dominoes? 

Well, there were nights that they played dominoes. After the 

swimrn.ing pool was completed, then they would spend time swimming 

and out driving over the ranch and things like that, played checkers. 

What can you add about LBJ's relaxation at the ranch, Mr. Williams? 

Well, he loved to hunt at .that tiITle and things like that. I don't know. 

There was a little joke, though, I will tell about one ti:me they had a 

flood. I think my wife m_entioned that. The flood was c'_:nning and he 

was stranded over, so he told rue to go down there and check it. I 

enjoyed that; I liked it, so I got down there and the station wagon 

wouldn't do anything but back up, Or something. I told him about 

that, and he said he had some Shetland ponies there. He said, 

"Y'all have already torn -u.p everything; have you got the harness for 

a li.ttle Shetland pon)r?" That was funny to ITle, things like that. He 

loved to hunt, and we'd fish, and stuff like that. He liked that, 

especially at the r'Ol.(lch. 

LBJ Presidential Library 
http://www.lbjlibrary.org

ORAL HISTORY TRANSCRIPT 
Lyndon B. Johnson Library Oral Histories [NAID 24617781]

More on LBJ Library oral histories: 
http://discoverlbj.org/exhibits/show/loh/oh



MG: 

HW: 

MG: 

HW: 

MG: 

HW: 

MG: 

HW: 

MG: 

EW: 

Williams - - 7 

He lived a slower pace there than he did in Washington, do you 

think? 

I think it would be entirely different, because in Washington there 

are always the cocktail parties and things like that. But at the 

ranch it was rnore or less informal, entertainment and just 

personal friends that he really knew were his friends. They weren't 

senators and things like that that were trying to get this bill passed 

and that bill passed. So I'm sure that the life was quite differen,t 

between the life in Washington and the life style at his ranch. 

Would you drive his car back and forth from. Washington to Texas. 

Yes, we did for quite some time. 

Do you remember the first time you did? Would you both drive it back? 

No, I wasn't driving. I'm not the driver. Gene was the driver. 

I think that he used to tell a story of you dri.ving the car to the ra.nch, 

isn't that right? 

Yes, and about Beagle? 

Yes, not wanting to take Beagle? 

That carne in like this. We started work for theln in 1950, and we 

carne to Washington on the train. But then in '51, I would make the 

drive twice a year; we would go down and corne back. At this time, 

he asked xne to take Beagle with us. I wouldn't say anything, so he 

said, "Gene, I want an answer." I still just looked a;: him. Finally 

I told hhn, "It's hard for :me to get a place to stay, tnuch less the dog." 

LBJ Presidential Library 
http://www.lbjlibrary.org

ORAL HISTORY TRANSCRIPT 
Lyndon B. Johnson Library Oral Histories [NAID 24617781]

More on LBJ Library oral histories: 
http://discoverlbj.org/exhibits/show/loh/oh



MG: 

EW: 

HW: 

MG: 

HW: 

Williarns - - 8 

He said, "Well I didn't know it was like tha.t." That's the v.;ay 

that Beagle deal came in. 

Did you tell hilTImore about it, the pr'Jblems that you had? 

I did tell him that, like I say, it was hard for '.IS to get a place 

to stay. We'd have to go to certai.n pla.ces or cer~aln towns. 

I would say you'd have to look for black motels or 3o:rnething. 

At various times he was confronted with the problelTI, because I 

know again her'~ in 'Washington Mrs. Johnson was away, so he 

asked us to take the children to the rnovie. Of course, I was going 

in with the children. These are the things that probably made him 

really aware of discrimination, more aware. 

I thinle so. 

So of course when we got to the ITlovie, I noticed everyone acting 

rather strangely, so I went to the Hekel: window to purchase the 

tickets. The girl only gave me two tickets. I said, "I'm sorry, 

I need three." Then she reluctantly pllshed al~oJ;her ticket out. 

At the door, the fellow on the door Jnly gave me back two stubs. 

I said, "I'm sorry, I gave you thrae tickets." By that time, the 

lTIanager was there, and he said, l'I'm sorry. You can't go in." 

I said, "Oh, no? Well, the girls are with me, and I have to take 

thelTI in." He said, "I'm sorry, YOtl can't go in." Of course, this 

hurt the girls very deeply, so they began to cry because -:hey 'wanted 

to s·ee their rnovie. So I had to bring them hotTIe, and o£ COllrse we 
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had to report: this to him. too. 

What was his reaction. Did you ten hiln yourself? 

Yes, and of course Lynda r'~shed in and told hiITl. 

Try to recall it as vividly as you can. 

When we got back, I think he was standing by the radiator reading 

the mail. He was just getting in. Lynda rushed in crying, and he 

said, "What's wrong?" She said, "They wouldn't let us see the 

movie." So then he started talking with me, and I told him why. 

Of course he looke-:l startled, and then he apologized to lue, because 

he felt like he had gotten me into this situation. 

But then following that, what was ki.nd of funny too, the next 

time Mrs. Johnson was away, Lynda had this affai r at school. She 

asked hilTI to go, and of course, he couldn't go, and he said, I'What 

about Helen? Can Helen go with you?" She thought for a minute, 

and she said, "Well, i.t says, Daddy, 'coIne one and come all, I and 

Helen is a 'one,' isn't she? II Of course, I didn't try to go to the 

school, Or anything like that. But traveling to and fro to Texas, they 

were made aware each tiITle of what a hardship it was. 

The indignities. 

Right. Another thing that I recall was when he first piloted the 

voting ri.ghts bill througb Congress, he luade reluarks [to us] because 

he had ·::mne to know us well. I don't know how- discl"uuination 

started alld all that, because we lcanw now that there is good a~ld bad 
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in all races. He said tome, !lHelen, I a"m going to do all I can 

to get this voting rights bill through because of people like yon and 

Zephyr and Gene. I feel that you and people like you have a right 

to the American way of life as well as anyone else.' 1 Of course, 

he fought against discri.mina<:ion in every way that he could. He 

was sincere, and I knew tha.t he was sincere. It would always be 

ups etting to me to hear sOlne black person sayan unkind word about 

him, because I knew how sincere he was about people having equal 

rights. And I'll tell you, i.£ any black per30n travels now, and I 

guess the \V-hites too, that's not flying, you can tell the difference. 

During the time that we wer':! traveling to and fro to Texas, we had 

to go way off the route to find a ?lace to stay. Now it's not like that. 

and your traveling time is cut much shorter, and it's really a difference: 

if you have the money, you stay. This is the viiay he respected black 

people. He always sai.d, IIIf you pay a person a good sahry, they will 

take care of the:ms elves. II That's the way I view hiUl. 

Did he want to k:l ow about i(lstances of dis crimination ag:.tinst you and 

your husband? 

No, I think he never questioned UB deeply about it, because I think the 

hUles that it did happen, knowing him he probably looked into it hims elf. 

Of course there were civil rS_ghts leaders fighting for the cause. 

He never reJerred any discrimination regarding you to the NAACP, did 

he? 
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Oh no, I'm sure he didn't. No, no, no. No. 

Was he mad when you would tell hirrl about someone that had. . . .? 

No, I don't think he was angered at all. I think be was just deeply 

hurt. No, he never showed any signs of anger, not at all. 

He never attempted to stra.ighten it out bi'mself by ? 

No, because I'm sure he knew how it had to be done. And after all, 

let's face it, how he worked had to be discreetly, because being the 

senator frorn Texas was his job, too. It was just not something you 

can take care of overnight. 

Another time I recall, another incident. Forgive me about dates, 

but it was either in Tennessee or Alabama. Then we were campaigning. 

When we registered in the hotel, I never knew that they didn't intend 

for me to stay there because I was black. That was the only time 

that we had been traveling that I didn't have a room ass·ignment. 

I remember him asking Bill Moyers what was my room assignment. 

So of course, in order to keep me from knowing I guess, Mr. Moyers 

didn't answer him, but I guess later he told him that they wouldn't 

assign me a room. 

What happened in that case? 

Well, I stayed that aight at the hotel, but I stayed in the Senator's 

5 '.lite because the girls weren't with us. So I stayed there in tha,t suite. 

Which was silly. That just shows you how silly discrimination is, 

because they didn't assign.me a room, but yet I stayed in one of the 
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plush suites. It didn't disturb Tne, but you 3 ee, these are the 

things that be had to be aware of. If they were happening to Ine, 

then they were happening to those other people, too, 

In that sense, your presence was awfully i'mportant in forming 

his own awareness of what was going on. 

Right. I think so. 

Well, Mr. Williallls, do you recall any other instances where you 

told him about discrimination with regard to yourself or friends of 

yours? 

EW: No, not too Inuch. I didn't do as much traveling as Helen did. 

MG: 

Most of Illy traveling was from her!~ to [Texas] and back. Most of 

my experiences on those things is like from. here to [Texas] and back 

twice a year.. But Helen did a 1:)t of traveling with them overseas 

and stuff like that. Most of Illine was driving a car3.nd stuff like that, 

working at the r-3.nch. I would go froTXl here to the r.3.nch and frotn the 

ranch back here. Most of Illy experi.ence then was like \vhen I was 

telling about the dog. I reITlelllber one night, though, I won't forget. 

I beJ:i.eve Zephyr was with us. We got into I-<nox:ville, Tennessee, I 

guess, around ten o'clock. I guess it was one o'clock that night before 

we could find a place to sleep. You know, things like that. So that's 

most of the experience I ;.,ad, £roIn here to Texas and back on thos·3 

kinds of dea 1.s. 

You were driving his limousine, weren't you? 
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Well, his persona~ car" 

Oh I see. I thought it was the[limousine]. 

No. I would take his personal car down and then bring it back, 

You see, the limousine stayed here. The chauffeur, I guess, was 

fur~lished by the government here. I was driving only his personal 

car. 

Did he aver talk to you about the impact of the dog incident? 

No. 

He never told you tha: it set the example, that that helped shape 

his thinking on [civil rights]? 

Well no. The only thing he said on that when I told him about that, 

he just said, Eke you would say, tnaybe, "Well, I didn't know it was 

like that." But like I say, when he said that, probably in his own 

ITlind, like you say, he can't do things by himself as a Senator." 

But m.aybe he was thinking, "Now why do people want to be like that. " 

Because he was a lovely person. He loved everybody, and he didn't 

care. He just loved, you see. 

You were probably suspicous, maybe a little bit, of him when you 

first went to wor~« for him.. I Inean, he was a Southern senator who 

had not, before 1950, had a reputation for supporting civil rights 

causes. When did you decide that he was on your side, that his 

heart was in the right place as far as civil rights was concerncd? 

When did you lear::). that he was really "motivated toward [civil rights]? 
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Well, I think when the issue first: started out, I think I knew then 

that he was a friend of the black man, because of the fact that I 

had watched him and knew that from his heart he was not a prejudiced 

man. 

But did you suspect that he might be prejudiced when you went to work 

for him, I ·mean, just not knowing him? 

No, I don't really think that I did. I'm not really sure. 

I was wondering, was there one point in your early association with 

him where he more or less convi.nced you that he was advancing 

ci vil rights? 

No, the only time that I think I was really aware or him really 

advancing civil rights was when he started working on getting that 

voting rights bill through. But now the things that m.oti vated him to 

do that up until that point, I'm not too sure of those, either. But 

I wasn't surprised that he undertook to do this thing, because I 

could tell that within his heart, he was not a prejudiced m.an. 

He didn't have any personal prejudice? 

No, and he seexned to be the type of m.an for advancement for the 

state of Texas and for the country. 

Can you recall him. helping black constituents while he was senator, 

realizing, of course, that you weren't working out of the office day 

by day? 

Not at this :m.orrrent I can't recall. 
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I know Mack Hannah from Houston used to go into his office. 

I think he was friends with Hobart Taylor, wasn't he? 

Yes, and Dr. Givens was a great friend of his. 

Oh, that's right. Can you rernernbe r anyone els e? 

No. Let's see, I was trying to recall the first black secretary 

that worked in his office, What was her nalne, Gene? Do you 

recall he r nalne? 

Ger6 Whitaker? [Whittington] 

No, no, no, the one before then, the one frOlu Austin. 

In his office? 

Hazy Taylor? Azy Taylor? 

I don't relUember. 

When did she go to work for him? 

That must have been ••. probably about 160, I believe. 

What do you r'o:member about that? 

Well, I remember when they were beginning to hj re blacks £01' 

these positions. He asked me one morning, "Helen, do you know 

a smart, attractive black girl that would like 1:0 work in my office. I' 

I said, !'Yes, me." (Laughing) He laughed and said, '·Well. you 

already have a job. 11 So later on, I recall, she was working £01" him. 

How did he hire her, do you know? 

No, I don't know how she carne to worK for him. 

Was she happy -,vith him? 
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Well, I didn 't know that much about her. but at the time that I 

met her> she was happy with he r work. 

Where we re yoa dur-:_ng the calupaigns, let's say election night 

in 1960, when he was elected Vice President? The year 

President Kennedy beat Richard Nixon. 

We must have been at the ranch. 

What was that question? 

In 1960, rernember, when he was elected Vice President, the night 

of the election, I was wondering if you were with him? 

No. I'm not quHe sure. I wouldn't say. 

I can't remember anything outstanding that I was involved in that 

:.:light, but --

But I believe we were at the ranch the night of the election, I'm 

quite sura. 

lim sure we were. 

Y lall were at the convention before that, so during the election, I'm 

quite sure 'vve were at the ranch. 

What was your role during these campaigns? 

Well as I was saying earlier, just trying to say all the good things 

about him you could whenever you could and seeing that they were 

as comfortable as possible and that everything was running smoothly. 

Did you run errands? 

Yes, if need be, and seeing that everything wa s kept whe re they could 
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just ••• , because your scheduling is [such that] you don't have 

any time to play around. You have to really meet these schedules; 

you can't afford to be late. So I would say more of less coordinating 

the wardrobes with the scheduling, seeing that everything was ready 

for the next affair, something like that. 

What was your most frustrating moment in attempting to carry out 

one of his requests, do you recall? When you were trying, say, to 

get something for him and couldn't find it? 

Well, I would think it would be if I was supposed to have had something 

that I should have packed and didn't pack it, and then. when I needed it, 

it wasn't there, say for instance, a favorite tie or a favorite pair of 

socks or a favorite piece of jewelry, cuff links or something like that. 

He was always very understanding about something like that, it would 

just be m.e hating that I had failed at this particular point. 

He would let you know that you had left something behind? 

He luight have asked me about it, he might have said, II Well, I prefer 

having my thus-and-so pair of cuff links." And then, of course. I 

would have to admit, "I'm sorry, I didn't bring it." 

How did you know what to pack? 

Just by knowing the favorite things by traveling day to day with 

sorneone, or ::naybe if one of his close aides or advance men on the 

trip would talk to Mrs. Johnson, then she would tell me. Or maybe 

sometirn.es they would talk with rn.e and let me know what the 
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te.mperature was like in a certain place, and then of course [my] 

knowing his favorite outfit for this particular climate. SOlnetimes 

I had to be careful, too, because they liked to travel with the least 

luggage possible. So sometimes if I wasn't sure about an outfit, 

I would have to be sure that they had [it]. This was the point; you 

always wanted them to have home away froln hOlne; you wanted 

theln to be as comfor':able and have everything that they were 

accustomed to to wear. This would be a :mental strain in order to 

go Inake a speech if you felt that this particular suit was inappropr!.ate 

or :his particular dress was inappropriate. So sometimes if there 

were doubts, you could stick in an extra outfit to be sure, or if they 

had a couple of favorite outfits, you might stick in two to be sure 

that you had one, at least. 

Mr. Williams, what about you? Do you recall perfor::n.ing for him 

during the campaigns or during his trips? What do you r<~inem.ber 

about that? 

No, I never was in an.y of the trips. Like I say, ::n.ost of my trips 

were from here to [Texas]. I guess there are jokes on me that 

wouldn't hurt. I remember one time - -I gues s a lot of people know 

it, too--but when he would get his new shoes, he would ask me to 

wear them and break them in for him. So one day when we were at 

the White House, I met him, and he looked at me and said, !'Gene, 

you don't have on Iny shoes .. II I said, l'Hasn Tt anybody brought theln 
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to me." He said, "Nobody's going to bring theln to you, You 

go get my shoes and break them ln for ).ne." And I rcrnember the 

time he was in the hospital. He couldn't get his paper like he wanted, 

so he called down to Mrs. Roberts and said, "You tell Gene to get 

:my papers out her':!, so I know I'll get ~ny papers." So about that time, 

Mr. Moyers fixed it where the press would take his papers out there. 

Like I say, I loved him and he was a good rnan, and he knew I would 

do what he wanted me to do. So Mr. Moyers said, "No, wait a 

minute. I'll try to fix that." So then they got the paper going. 

So he [Johnson] t·:)ld Mrs. Roberts, "Gene will get !ny papet's to tne 

right on time." But on the trips, I never did make any trips with 

him, nothing unless we would just go from. here to Texas and back, 

a short trip. But I wasn't on the campaign tri.ps. I would either be 

here or at the ranch to r8ceive hirn, or something like that. 

How long would you break in shoes? 

Well, I might wear theln about three or four days and then shine thein. 

He didn't like new ones. I would clean them up and shine them fo r him, 

and then he would be satisfied with them. 

That's great. Well, he was a great raconteur, a great storyteller. 

Did he ever tell some of his Hill Country stor~,es to you? 

(Laughter) 

Yes, but he told so many, I C;;t(l't r'o::member them. Like I say, he 

was really a good man. One thing I liked about him was he was so 
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kind-hear+:ed. I mean, he would say things to you and you would 

say things to hiITl, and it was all over. He was just really a good man. 

Can you remember when he became President, 1::he assassination? 

Wer(~ you in Washington? 

Well, that was '63. No, we were at the ranch. That was 1963, 

November 22. 

You were getting r'~ady for a party, ::. think. 

Well. getting ready for President Kennedy. They w-ere (:oming in there: 

Lo the rarlsh at night. 

Can you recall how you heard about it? 

Well, the way we heard it--let's see now, I want to be sure--I believe 

it was Jalnes' wife, Mary. I was out there on the porch doing some-

thing. She said, "Oh! President Kennedy got shot!" I said, !lAw, 

Ma ry, quitmes sing around." So I went on doing [my work]. Then 

finally they had it on television, a special bulletin, and that's when 

we knew. I would say it was about twelve o'clock ther.;:: or twelve 

thirty at that time. Then we really got the repo rts on that. 

Mrs. Williams, didn't you go into action then? 

Well, we waited at the ranch to see what was going to happen after 

that. I think we finally got the word that they had gone hack to 

Washington1 so thetl we got a flight out. A pri.vate plane took U3 

into Dallas that night, and then we got a flight O',lC of Dallas which 

got us to 1Nashington about •.• what time did we arrive "in 
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Washington, about seven a' clock in the "morning, about six thirty? 

Somewhere ar::lUnd six: ..• or six thirty. I imagine by the time 

we got out to the car it must have been about seven or seven thirty. 

About six thirty. Of course, we packed aU the clothes and brought 

everything ba.ck with us. It was rather strange when we got to 

52nd Street to sp-e all the Secret Service and all those a.t the gao:e; 

we really had tight security. I was faITliliar with the scheduling, 

and seemingly theri:: wasn't anyone stirr:_ng or preparing anything. 

I didn't see any other domestic help getting anything ready, so I 

i:m:mediately walked to one of the agents and asked hiDl about the 

then-President;s schedule. I said, "Well, he should be getting 

a :meal." They said yes, so I just rushed 6ght in and put the coffee on 

and took them up so:me coffee, They were happy that I under~:ook the 

initiative to do this, but of course they were very sad. 

What did he say to )TOU? 

He said, "Helen, people are ;;tlwa ys talking about the black people, 

but they sure aren't going around killing each other. '1 And of course, 

Mrs. Johnson said, "Helen, a lot of things have changed, but thank 

God you haven't changed." You know, it was just things like this that 

they would appreciate. At a ti:me like this, as I've said before, just 

a gesture of giving coffee was kind of ..• 

Did you bring their clothes back with you, SODle warm clothes? 

Yes. 
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I think you went with Marie Fehmer, didn't you? 

No, it was Bess Abell that we carne back with. Yes, we had aU 

the clothe s with us. 

Did you regard him differ3ntly now that he was President? 

How did your role change? What did you do? 

My role changed. Instead of kind of just seeing about all of the 

family, my role mostly changed by just catering mostly to 

Mrs. Johnson a::ter ~hat. I catered to her after that. It was pretty 

much the same instead of i:aking the two along together, because 

the lnilitary had sergeants that would look after the ComITlander-in-

Chief. So I only had just Mrs. Johnson after that, which was 

pretty much the SaD:le thing, coordinating the clothes and scheduling 

and doing what you can to see that things go as smoothly as pos sible. 

Did you live with theln when they were at The Elms? 

Yes. As a matter of fact, the whole eighteen years that we worked 

with tnern, we never had any other addres s except what they had. 

Right. It was kind of stra:1.ge to people at firat, you know, especially 

after "Vile m.oved into the White House, that we would give theITl 

1600 Pennsylvania Avenue as our residence. 

Do you recall ha.ving any hUlnor,Jus experiences here, trying to 

convince som.eone that you lived at the White House? 

Well, at first it would be kind of strange when they would say, 

i'Whac is your address. I! I wouldn't say "White House," I would say, 
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"1600 Pennsylvania Avenue. l' It wouldn't ring a bell at first, 

and then they would stop and take another look at me. And then 

they would. look again, two looks, and they would say, "You're 

kiddi.ng." And I would say, I'No, 1600 Pennsylvania Avenue." 

They would say, "That's the White House.!I I would say, "Yes, 

I know." Of course, they wouldn't pursue it any further than that, 

but I'm sure they would check into it to see. 

Can you remember any big rnoments during the presidency? I'm 

sure you were involved with the daughters! weddings, weren't you? 

Well yes, we helped in every way we could. Those were big :rno:rnencs, 

because we had a lot of the family corning in, and it was so much 

gaiety and all, :meeting di££er,ent ones that you hadn't seen befor,e, 

helping the bridesmaids. 

Did Senator and later President Johnson have tiITle to be a good 

father, to spend as much tiITle with the kids as . . .? 

Well, considering, I think be did, because whenever he was free, 

he would always be with the family. Before he was Senator I when 

we were in Texas, there were times when he would take the faITlily 

awa y from Austin, before be bought his ranch, to different friends I 

ranches and spend the weekend with then"l all. And I reomember 

ther'3 were occasions when he would take theITl to St. Joseph Island 

and spend time with them there, which is very beautiful. I think, 

considering, be spent quite a bit of time with the children, not as 
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rrlUch as some fathers, just an ordinary father would do, where 

they take the children out picnicking or something like that eve ry 

weekend. But in the position that he was in- -you know, most of 

his time wasn't his o'.vn, anyway, but I think he was a very good 

father. 

What do you re.meITlber about the weddings? 

We11,mostly just how thrilled everyone was. And I rernernber 

when Luci and Pat were getting ready to go away, we wer'~ all 

just so happy it was just unbelievable. I didn't realize how happy 

and how thrilled we wer,;:! 'Intil they made some pictures and the way 

one of them turned out was just hilarious. That was when I really 

actually saw how thrilled we all were. It was just ridiculous. 

What about the birth of his grandson? Did you see how he regarded 

that; were you there? 

I can't say that I was ther'::'!, but I do know that from Lyn's birth, 

from the tiITle Lyn arrived, he was a very proud and doting grand-

father. Of course, that was the son that he had never had. 

Did he ever '::e11 you that or talk to you about his grandson? 

I rerneITlber one night he decided just at the 5 pur of the TIloment that 

he wanted Lyn to go, and of course I was the only available peraon, 

so he grabbed. me up to take Lyn in with him into Austin. 

What happened? 

Well, he wasn't happy with what I put on Lyn to wear. So he said, 
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"Helen, couldnit you dress hi"m up better Lhan that?" I said 

that this was about the prettiest thing he had at the moment, so 

Lyn ended up with a whole new wardrobe after that. 

Did the President select the clothes hilnself? 

Oh, yes. He selected clothes for anyone that he chose to, Mrs. Johnson, 

the girls, or any of us. He always selected things, and he had very 

good taste for people that he wanted to buy something for. 

What else dur:,ng the presidential years do you want to recall? Did 

you go to any of the state dinne rs. any of the parties there at the 

White Hous e ? 

Well, we attended sm:ne parties, but I never went to any of the 

state dinners. 

What wer c8 the parties like? 

Well, they were all, my gracious! That was one thing about the 

Christmas parl::i.es and any event that was given there where the 

staff wa::; invited. Everything was just so gay and outgoing, and every.., 

one just had a g')od time, and he entertained the staff just as 

elaborately as he would any dignitary. You know what I mean, not 

the full-course dinners, but we had the buffets, where ther'= was 

just lots and lots of food and all the staff would enjoy the parties 

trslnendously. I don't think they've had any part~es like that since. 

Was it hard for you to leave the White House? Were you r':!d.dy to go? 

No, it wasn't ho_rd to leave the White House. Matter of fact, it was 
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rather a:mazing to just see how quickly you can tUrn and get out 

of the way for the next occupant. Most of our things were going 

out, the last minute things. Of course, the new President and 

First Family's things were being brought in. Of course, by 

knowing that President Johnson was not going to run, we had a 

little more opportunity to kind of prepare a.nd get things --

When did you find out that he wasn't going to run again? 

The night that he announced it. 

Did you hear it on TV? 

I heard it on television. 

Were you surprised? 

I was surprised and thrilled. 

Were you? 

Yes, I was, because I thought that he had had it, by knowing him 

and how much he wanted to do for America and the people. It seemed 

as if everyone was just kind of turning aga inst him as if he wasn't 

doing enough. And of course, I was thrilled to see him step down, 

Do you remember him talking to you after he made the decision. 

expres sing a desire to be out of the White House? 

No. 

Was he tired from the presidency, do you think? 

No, I don't think he was tired of Lt. Just by knowing him personally 

the way I did, I just assumed that he figured that it was the only 
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thing for him to do, because he had led the country as far as he 

could and if people were discontented, let them have someone 

that they would be contented with. 

Do you think he was glad to leave the White House? Did he express 

a desire to get back to the ranch? What did he say in these last 

days in the White House? 

I never talked with him personally on leaving the White House, because 

he was always so busy with other things. 

Was Mrs. Johnson ready to get back to Texas? 

I would think in a way that she vvas. You know, you just don't ask 

people these things. I'm sure there were mixed ernotions about 

it, because I had mixed elTIotions for them. They had been in 

\Vashington and been so a parI: of the government for so tnany years. 

Naturally, they would be happy to get home and under perhaps a 

friendlier attitude. I feel like they felt that they had really given 

all they had to public life and that they were doing this without any 

regrets, really. 

You didn't go down to Texas, did you, when they did, is that correct? 

Didn't you stay in Washington? 

Yes, we stayed in Washington, becaus e I kind of liked Washington, and 

of course in '65, we purchased this home because we had decided that 

we might stay here [or a while. Reluctantly. He asked us to go back 

to Texas, but then when we explained to them that we wanted to stay 
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in Washington, they understood. 

Can you remember your farewell to him when they left for Texas? 

Actually, we didn't say farewell here, because I flew to Texas with 

them, so that's where I said farewell to him. 

And then came back? 

And then came back to Washington. 

Did he give you any parting advice? 

No, he just grasped my hand and said goodbye. 

What about you, Mr. Williams? What do you remember about [it]? 

Nothing. Well, I didn't go down to Texas with thern. I just said 

goodbye to them from here, I didn't go down. There's not rrluch 

I can remember on that, no more than that, you know. 

After the presidency, when he was in retirement at the ranch, did he 

ever telephone you, or did Mrs. Johnson ever call you? 

We would go home during the summer months, and then we would call 

and go out for a visit then. I recall the fall that we were there before 

his death, we didn't get a chance to see him. But we did talk with 

Mrs. Johnson, and she said, "I'm SUre Lyndon will not be busy long, 

so why don't you stay and spend the night?" Of course, she had to 

rush off to join hi.m. So we said to James, "Well, knowing 

President Johnson, he will probably !lot be back for a little while, 

and I guess we had better go. Be sure you tell him hello and that we 

will be calling." Of course, we didn't get a chance to see hiITl any 
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rnore alive. 

Do you rcmember the last time you saw him? 

Yes, it waas one summer at the ranch after he had retired. That's 

when. he was talking to us about civil rights and about his book. He 

was looking great and still enjoying life. 

What did he say about his book? 

Well, he was asking us about how we fared in traveling. We told 

him the differenee and the accomplishments that he had made in 

this field, in that particular phase of discrimination. He was 

pleased to hear that, and [we were] just talking about the time that 

Gene mentioned the fact that he could not carry the dog to Texas 

because it was hard for him to find a place to stay besides having 

the dog with us. 

Is there anything else about President Johnson or Mrs. Johnson that 

you'd like to add? 

I must add this, that the entire Johnson family was just glorious. 

(End of Tape 1 of 2. Interview continued on Tape 2 of 2.) 
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Okay. I'm. sorry. Mrs. Williams? 

Okay, just continue from where I was with Luci? 

Maybe we can back up to Luci. 

I recall one time that Luci asked me if I thought she had a good mother. 

She said, "Helen, do you think I have a good mother?" I said, "Of 

course I do. I think your ~nother is the best m.other in the whole world. " 

She said, "Do you think I have a sweet rnother?" I said, "Sure:. Your 

.mother is the sweetest mother in the whole world." She looked a little 

puzzled. She couldn't understand this when I said, ". . .mothe r in 

the whole world." She said, "Helen, don't you have a mother?" Of 

course, this is quite funny, I said, "Yes, I do, Luci. I do have a 

ITlother." But I still think that Mrs. Johnson was such a sweet person. 

I think that she was so understanding of her children and how to keep 

a household peacefillly, that she was just truly a good lllother --in 

spite of ITq m.other, and I love iny mother, too. This is the type uf 

i?erson that she is. 

She was frorn East Texas, I believe, froin Karflack and Marshall. 

Yes. 

Did she ever talk to you about growing up the'!"8 and what life \vas like? 
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No. I never talked with her about her early childhood, or anything like 

that. I do know that her mother died when she was quice young, but she's 

surely a sweet person. 

You felt, then, that the things that you did for the Johnsons were always 

aPPN!ciated an.d that theS' wero! always considerd.l::e? 

Definitely. Definitely. 

I think the impression t 1J.atrnost of the "staff people" have given 

of President Johnson was tbat he expected a 10t from. the people that worked 

with him and that there were flO "slackers!' aro~nd him. Is this true? 

Well, I think he expected hi s e[nployees to anticipate his needs as if 

he anticipated their needs" And,:)f cour3e. he just always expected 

a job well done, and this is what you would do. You really anticipated 

any:bing that needed to be done, you know, to make the job go smoothly 

and better. and thjs is what you did. Perhaps he did expect this, becal~se 

this is the type of person tbat he was. If he depended on you to see to 

s:)tnething. then this is what he depended on. So if you carne up shor~. 

He 1 d let you know? 

Well, he wouldn't because he always rernetubered to pra.ise you, and he 

appreciated those thing ••. and there vvete always rewards at Christ:TIas 

time. 

Did 'IOu ~'l~r give him anything at Christmas that he really liked? 

I'll tell you, that was the hardest thing to do--to buy something for Senator 

Johnson. I really don't know. I r e •. ue rube t" one GiiTIe when I gave hi.!u a 

manicur;ng set because Mrs. Johnson. '.lSed to do his nails for hilTI 
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and what can you give someone who has ev·erything? But that was it. 

He expected eVe ryone to give hiin a gift. But let me finish about the Inan·· 

icuring set. I wanted to get hiln sOlnething that was different. So, Mrs. 

Johnson was usi.ng it on hilll and he said, "Helen, this set of youra 

doesn't work too well." I sai.d, "Well, we'll have to wait until they've 

pe rJected it a little Inore. " 

But there was one gift that I know he appreciated, because we knew 

the type of handkerdlief he liked. We knew where ~o get them, and we m.ade 

a tri.p to Lewis and Thomas Saltz and got these white handkerchiefs with 

his initial on theIn, and he appr·eciated theln. Well, he app reciated 

everything, but you wanted to give sOlnething slllall that you knew he 

could use an.d would use. 

Well, Mr. Willi.ams, what about you? Do you rernelnbeJ' having given 

or l'eceived any melnorable gifts? 

Oh ymh. I haven't given, but LIve received rnem.orable gifts. The watch 

I have all. now he gave rne. It's got his initials in it right her::!. The gifts 

that we gave him, Helen and I were involved i.n it. But I'd let her do aU the 

picking just like she does all the tJicking now. I have another watch that he 

gave rne. It's an alar·m watch. This one here with the initials in it 

I've been wearing for at least five years. 

What about his father"? Did he ever talk to yoa about his fa.ther? 

No. When we m.et him his father h.ad beea pa~3 sed for quite a while. 

How about his mother? Did he ever talk aboat his mother? 

Well, he talked about his lnother, but we were ar'JlPld her qllite a bit. 

She was :l. wonderful woman herself. 
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MG: 

EW: 

MG: 

HW: 

MG: 

HW: 

MG: 

EW:q 

MG: 

HW: 

Williams --4 

What was she like? 

I couldn't say exactly what she was like, because I wasn't around her 

daily and rnaybe I would l.J.st take sornething Dve r '~o the house (or 1:1e1' a.nd 

cnaybe be there about thir~y tninutes Or an hour. And that's abDut all 

I was around her. But the ti.me I waR around he r, she was a ve toy iTi ce 

lady. A very lovely person. 

Mrs. Williams, what can you tell us about her? 

Well, Mrs. Sam Johnson was a very sweet, warm. person, and she was 

very fond of Lynda and Luci and wheneve t' Senator Johnson and Mrs. 

Johnson wer~ away, she was really their grandmother and someone 

that they looked forward to having around. We would take them by and 

let thern spend the da,y with her whenever they Nere away. 

Did you ever ~lear her give Senator Johnson a.ny ad'lice on things to follow 

Or c.hings to do or (lOt do? 

No. 

Well how about you, Mr. Williams? Can you add anything else about 

P resident Johnson? 

No sir. 1 tell you. what I can rernel.nber is pretty near :3.ccurate and 

corl'eet. I guess that's about all. As you go along I may rr;)member 

something frorn way back a r a long time ago, but £01' today I gues s that's 

about 3.11 I can say. 

How about you, Mrs. Williams? 

Well, that's pr2!cty tnuch aU. I don't ~:<:now if I touched ::>n the Christmases 

and how ITluch fun they we re and how gene r·:.>uS he ~Nas to an the e(nployees. 

There was this big tr2:t3 and he had gi its for .8verybody. Everyone would 

LBJ Presidential Library 
http://www.lbjlibrary.org

ORAL HISTORY TRANSCRIPT 
Lyndon B. Johnson Library Oral Histories [NAID 24617781]

More on LBJ Library oral histories: 
http://discoverlbj.org/exhibits/show/loh/oh



Williams·- 5 

as semble in the liv"lngruo:n. Then we woul:l have the tr ~e on Christmas 

Eve night, ::1.11 the e~nploy~es. We would all be served eggnog and thing3 li.ke 

that. And then Christmas lTIorning h.e would lOad up the car with Lam.m.es 

pralines ,:.naybe a case of bourbon aad a case of scotC~l and take out 3.rOil~ld 

the countryside giving diHel'~nt ones their :::::hristm.as gifts. He always 

tried to make Christmas r~allymelTIorable for everyone in that cmnmunity. 

MG: Did he have Santa Claus at those parties? 

HW: No. We didn't have Santa Claus. He was the Santa Claus without the 

bea. rd. 

MG: If the re: s a.nything else you would like to a.dd you can a.ddi t later Ln the 

transcript if you think of anything or i.f you feel like I should make another 

trip back or 3ee you on the next trip, just let us know and we'll work 

something out. But your recollections have beeD. perfectly rnarvelous. 

EW: I would like to say this before we close that you can see how we are fond 

of thelTI. All the pictur'3S YC)\.l see, you don't see a.nybody b,~t the JOh:1SOl1.S. 

There's one right behind, and Ov(~r there. They are 01.1:>." {avor~te faITlily. 

We really lOVe the!n. 

MG: Yes, they're certainly weil represented hel'~_ 

HW: I really feel that we have profited by knowing such a wonderful family. I 

think that ~f everyone had the insight into a family relationship as this family 

was, you wouldn't have any problems in America. They ar'~ just really 

Ina rvelous. I could never explain exa.ctly .i ClS t what type of h.mily they are. 

I r.;,!call the rnor,:1.ing after the election of Vice President Joh:lson 2.'1.d 

P resident Kennedy I:hat he di d mention tome that they we T c aware of the 

fad:. that i.f i.t had 'l.ot bee"l for the black vote, they would not have been 
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elected, He said, "I want you to know that we are going to do all 

we can for the black people". 

(End of Interview) 
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